
CITY OF DAPHNE 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JULY 21, 2014 

6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /  Pastor Bart Hare with Bay Community Church 

  
 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:      Council meeting minutes / July 7, 2014    

                                                     Council Work Session minutes / July 14, 2014                        

     

PRESENTATION:    Beautification 3
rd

 Quarter Awards / Rebecca Trosclair / Eastern Shore Urgent Care, Malbis / 

                                     Zaxby, Malbis                              

              

        

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE - Conaway   

   Review minutes / July 14
th
  

   1.   Ordinances: 

          a.)  Appropriating Funds:  Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop Emergency  

                Drainage Repair / Ordinance  / Ordinance 2014-30 

 

   2.    Resolutions: 

          a.)  Bid Award: Police Vehicle Equipment Replacement / Firehouse Sales & Service / 

                Resolution 2014-40 

          b.)  Bid Award:  Emergency Drainage Repair / Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop /  

                Blade Construction / Resolution 2014-41 

 

   3.    Financial Reports: 
 Treasurers Report / June 2014 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / May 2014 

 Lodging Tax Collections / May 2014 

            
B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis 

   Review minutes / July 7
th
  

            a.)    Resolution 2014-38 / Declaring 5 Lapatops Surplus and donate them to community organizations 

            b.)   Resolution 2014-39 / Declaring 2 trucks, 1 tire changer and 1 Ford diagnostic machine surplus 

          

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell      

   Review minutes / July 9
th
    

  

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott 

   Review minutes / July 9
th
  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 
 5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones         

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway  

         Review minutes / June 25
th
  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               JULY 21, 2014                              PAGE   2                                           
 

 

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis    

   D.  Library Board - Lake  
   E.   Planning Commission – Scott  

F. Recreation Board – LeJeune 

   G.   Utility Board - Fry  

          Review minutes / May 28
th

  
         

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report       

           a.)  Discuss firms to Refinance Bonds: 

                 MOTION: To authorize Adams and Reese LLP and firm selected by council to prepare all necessary  

                                     documentation for council review of a debt refinancing issuance  in FY 2014 

 

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

a.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus / Donate to Community Organizations. . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-38 

 

b.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus / Govdeals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-39 

 

c.)   Bid Award: Police Vehicle Equipment / Firehouse Sales & Service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-40 

 

d.)   Bid Award: Emergency Drainage Repair / Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop / 

        Blade Construction. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-41 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:  

        

        2
ND

 READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds: Police Vehicle Replacement / Flooded During  

       the April 2014 Rain Storm. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-28 

 

 

        1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Appropriating Funds:  Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop Emergency 

        Repairs Drainage Repairs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-30 

 

b.)    Appropriating Funds: Daphne Sports Complex Parking Lot. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-31 

 

 

 

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

3



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Bryant Evans of Eastern Shore Church of Christ gave the invocation 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Dane Haygood Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City 

Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, 

Community Development Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, 

Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; 

Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Christine 

Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Lt. Judd Beedy; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification 

Committee and Downtown Redevelopment Authority; Tomasina Werner, Beautification 

Committee; Elaine Maxime; Beautification Committee; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Larry 

Cooke, BZA; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Scott Hetrick, Adams & Reese; Kevin 

Boucher, Adams & Reese.  

 

Absent: Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

June 16, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

There being no correction to the June 16, 2014 council meeting minutes and stand approved as 

written. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be July 14
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next council 

packet. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be July 9
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The next meeting will be July 9
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

 

4July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The minutes for the June 16
th

 meeting are in the packet along with the June 4
th

 Beautification 

Committee and May 12
th

 Museum minutes.  The next meeting will be July 21
st
.  

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be August 7
th

 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

        B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be July 23
rd

.   

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The minutes for the June 23
rd

 meeting are in the packet, and the treasurer’s report was $293,894. 

The next meeting will be July 28
th

.  

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

Circulation for June was 47,911, patrons was 22,289, the reading program grand total was 1,859 

and the teen program had 276 participants. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The  May 22
nd

 minutes are in the packet.  The Site Review meeting will be July 16
th

 at 8:30 a.m. 

and the regular Planning Commission meeting will be July 24
th

 at 5:00 p.m.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to set a Public Hearing date for August 4, 2014 6:30 p.m. 

and approve advertising to consider: 

 
Pre-Zoning:   John White-Spunner, Kidco,L.L.C.;  

             John White-Spunner Sidno, L.L.C. and Matt White 

Present Zoning:    B-1, Professional Business District, Baldwin County District 15 

Proposed Pre-zoning:  B-2, General Business, City of Daphne 

Location:   Property Located Northwest of the Intersection of County Roads 13 

                     and 64 

Recommendation:  Unanimous Favorable 

 

1. Annexation:  John White-Spunner, Kidco,  L.L.C.; John White-Spunner  

                                                    Sidno, L.L.C and Matt White 

Location:   Property Located Northwest of the  Intersection of County Roads  

                                13 and 64 

Recommendation:   Unanimous Favorable 

 

                                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

5July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be July 9
th

 at 6:30 p.m.  Councilman LeJeune commended the fireworks 

display, and mentioned the debt forgiveness ordinance is on the agenda for a second read. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

Council President Fry said there was one vacancy on the board council needs to fill.  The six 

applicants are as follows:  Mr. Wayne Davis, Ms. Lindsey Wilson, Mr. Donald P. Gresh, Mr. 

Billy Mayhand, Mr. Philip Durant and Mr. Tim Swanson. 

 

1
ST

 VOTE 
                    

              NAME                                                          VOTE                                           TOTAL 

 

Wayne Davis 

 

LeJeune, Davis, Fry 

 

3 

 

Lindsey Wilson 

  

0 

 

Donald P. Gresh 

 

Rudicell, Scott, Fry 

 

3 

 

Billy Mayhand 

 

Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Scott, LeJeune 

 

5 

 

Philip Durant 

  

0 

 

Tim Swanson 

 

Conaway, Lake, Davis 

 

3 

 

TIE BREAKER VOTE 

 

              NAME                                                          VOTE                                           TOTAL 

 

Wayne Davis 

 

LeJeune, Davis, Fry 

 

3 

 

Donald P. Gresh 

 

Rudicell, Scott 

 

2 

 

Tim Swanson 

 

Conaway, Lake 

 

2 

 

FINAL VOTE 
 

 

              NAME                                                          VOTE                                           TOTAL 

 

Billy Mayhand 

 

Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, LeJeune, Fry 

 

5 

 

Wayne Davis 

 

Scott, Davis 

 

2 

6July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

Mr. Billy Mayhand is appointed to fill the term of Lon Johnston on the Utility Board.  

Term ends June 12, 2015. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Haygood commented on four items: 

1) Update on spam – A spam service was installed on June 23
rd

.  Statistics from the provider 

has been interesting:  2,000 e-mails per day on weekdays, overall averaging 1,289 

messages per day, and about 61% of that is spam.  He hopes council can see a difference. 

2) Broadcasting of council meetings – He agreed to take on the task of doing some research 

and working along with the city’s IT Department, and he engaged a couple of vendors 

and got some numbers.  They looked at live audio, archive audio, live video/audio and 

archive video/audio.  The easiest to do if they had the equipment they think they have 

right now to handle doing archive/audio broadcast of the council meetings at zero cost, 

but it was suggested the city sign up for service to handle the streaming of those at a cost 

of roughly $20.00 - $25.00 per month.  Live video would require $1,500 - $2,000 worth 

of equipment, and a service provider for about $50.00 per month or $600 annually 

recurring.  If council wanted to move to video either archive or live each of those would 

require an investment in the $6,000 - $10,000 range depending on how many cameras 

and the quality of the cameras, and each would require a recurring fee of roughly $50.00 

per month for a service provider that would enable the video to stream.  With each of 

those there is additional consideration in terms of operator requirements if you have 

multiple cameras.  One stay put camera would not require that much, but if you have 

multiple cameras someone has to switch between cameras. 

3) It was brought to his attention that the Dixie Youth All Stars have advanced to sub-state 

tournament, and a request was made to his office for funding for the ball club to travel to 

Montgomery. Research was done to see what the precedent has been, and it seems in the 

past when a team advanced to State or beyond state, the World Series or Regional the city 

has provided some funding.  He wanted to bring this to council’s attention for 

consideration.  If council is so inclined the money can be taken from his travel budget. 

4) CCCC, L.L.C. Agreement – The improvements on Randall Avenue and US Highway 98 

has gone before the Beautification Committee, and they have given their approval of the 

plan. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize the Mayor to sign the agreements with 

CCCC, L.L.C. and ALDOT  related to the Highway 98 and Randall Avenue 

Improvements.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Fry                          NAY    Lake 

 

                                                           MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

7July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider a motion to 

appropriate $1,000 from his and Mayor Haygood’s travel budget to the Dixie Youth 

All Stars to travel to State Competition.  NO SECOND 

 

                                      MOTION FAILS FOR A LACK OF A SECOND 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to suspend the rules to consider allowing a 

councilman to give his travel money to the Dixie Youth All Stars.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

 ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway     Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Nay    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Nay    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye        

 

                                                            MOTION FAILS 

 

   

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross requested that council convene in Executive Session at the end of the meeting to 

discuss personnel matters for about 45 minutes, and then come back and vote if necessary. 

   

     C.   Department Head Comments 

James White – Fire Chief – said there were two small fires from fireworks on the fourth.  They 

did not get out of hand. 

 

Richard Johnson – requested council to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2014-29 

regarding repairing the bridge at Gator Alley so that they could move forward.  It is qualified 

under FEMA with 75% reimbursement. 

 

     D.  City Clerk Report – Rebecca A. Hayes 
            a.)  ABC License / Uncle Maddios Pizza Joint / 020 – Restaurant Retail Liquor 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to approve the ABC License for Uncle Maddios 

Pizza Joint / 020 – Restaurant Retail Liquor.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

8July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Mrs. Elaine Maxime –  105 Avon Circle East – spoke regarding the improvements at Randall 

Avenue and US Highway 98 saying she wants to make sure the improvements go along with the 

Beautification Committee’s plans.  Everyone needs to know what the other is doing, and it works 

better that way. 

 

Mr. Rod Drummond – 367 Ridgewood Drive – spoke regarding videoing council meetings and 

the agenda not being in the paper on Sunday’s. 

 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

        RESOLUTIONS: 
a.)    Bid Award:  D’Olive Creek Pedestrian Bridge Replacement /  

         Asphalt Services, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-36 

 

b.)   Supporting Further Investigation Into the Possibility of 

        Constructing an Interchange on Interstate 10 at County Rd. 13. . . .  /Resolution 2014-37 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2014-36 and 

2014-37.  Seconded by Councilman  LeJeune. 

 

                                         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-36.   Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

                                        MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-37.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                       MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

9July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ          
a.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Engineering, Design and Letting /  

        North Main Street Paved Concrete Ditch Repairs / 

        City-Wide Infrastructure Projects . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-26 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds: Debt Forgiveness: Recreation 

        Capital Purchases Loan from Lodging Tax Fund . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-27 

 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-26 and 2014-27.  

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway.            

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-26.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 
 

                                                    MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2014-27.  Seconded by Councilman 

Davis. 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
a.)   Appropriation of Funds: Police Vehicle Replacement /  

       Flooded During the April 2014 Rain Storm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-28 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds: D’Olive Creek Pedestrian Bridge 

       Replacement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-29 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2014-29.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway   Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake  Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott  Aye 

 

                                               MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

10July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-29.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

                                            MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2014-29.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

                                            MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

  
 

ORDINANCES 2014-28 WAS A 1
ST

 READ 
 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilwoman Conaway thanked the Daphne Art Center for the Farm Festival, and hopes next 

year it will be a better turnout. 

 

Councilman Lake also thanked the Daphne Art Center for the festival.  He spoke regarding tree 

protection at Randall Avenue and US Highway 98. 

 

Councilman LeJeune said that he appreciates Mr. Lake’s passion regarding trees.  He said that 

Fairhope appreciates our green corridor to their colorful city. 

 

Councilman Davis said that the city needs to do an inventory of trees in the city, and he read 

from the Council Rules of Procedure Ordinance that each councilman  and the mayor are allotted 

three minutes to speak. 

 

Council President Fry said the Daphne Art Center Festival was excellent.  He hopes everyone 

enjoyed the fourth, and thanked the Police Department, Fire Department and Paramedics.  He 

reminded everyone of the run-off election July 15
th

.  He congratulated Mr. Mayhand. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending 

personnel matters which will be for 45 minutes.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

Mr. Ross, the City Attorney and a certified attorney with the State of Alabama, certified 

that the foregoing stated reason for entering into Executive Session was in accordance with 

the Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

                                                  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Council entered into Executive Session at 8:00 p.m. 

Council returned from Executive Session at 9:25 p.m. 

Mr. Ross recommended to council to set two Special Called Council Meetings.  One meeting for 

August 5, 2014 at 5:30 p.m. and one meeting for Thursday, August 7, 2014 at 5:30 p.m., each to 

deal with a single subject that is a personnel matter appealing the Mayor’s decision to the full 

council.  This will be an Executive Session not open to the public.  The meeting will be open and 

then go into a Quasi-Judicial proceeding, and come back and vote if necessary, and the vote has 

to be in public.   

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to call two Special Called Council Meetings for August 5, 

2014 5:30 p.m. and Thursday, August 7, 2014 5:30 p.m. each to deal with a single subject 

that is a personnel matter appealing the Mayor’s decision to the full council.  This will be 

an Executive Session not open to the public.  The meeting will open and then go into 

Executive Session / Quasi-Judicial proceeding, and come back and vote if necessary.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Mr. Ross stated that the City Clerk will prepare the Public Notice and agenda with one item – the 

Quasi-Judicial Proceeding in Executive Session. 

 

 

 

 

12July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
0

 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 9:32 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Randy Fry,     

City Clerk      Council President 

13July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 14, 2014 
CITY COUNCILWORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; 

Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; Margaret Thigpen, 

Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works 

Director. 

 

Absent:  Mayor Dane Haygood; Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. MATRIXX 21 / ERNIE BERGER / TIM SWANSON 

Mr. Berger and Mr. Swanson made a presentation regarding creating a strategic plan for the 

city.  Fee structure would be as follows: 

1. Negotiate fee / Have three Senior Consultants 

2. City would receive monthly M-21 Progress/Value reporting 

3. All specialized consulting, if needed, would be extra, approved by council  

4. Team would receive 8% of any cost savings to city starting FY2015 

5. Team would receive 5% of any revenue growth if city implements their suggestions 

6. City owes nothing if they do not produce anything 

7. $50,000 continuance fee after first year if council wants to keep the process going  

 

2. UPDATE: DISASTER RECOVERY / POWERPOINT / RICHARD JOHNSON 

Mr. Johnson gave council an update on the progress of the disaster recovery from the April rain 

events using a power point presentation. 

 

3. RECREATION BOARD PROPOSAL FOR RECREATION FACILITIES 

Councilman LeJeune thanked Hatch Mott McDonald for their help in producing the rendering 

for the facility.  He said that these proposals will get the city current with recreation needs.  He 

said that HMR and Hatch Mott McDonald both estimate the cost of moving dirt at the Tallent 

Lane property at $2 million.  Council needs to decide where to put the fields.  Councilman 

LeJeune said there are other properties in Daphne that are for sale that would not require 

moving dirt if council wanted to go in that direction.  He said that decisions have to be made by 

council. 

 

4. ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY  

Councilman Davis referred to a letter from a Mrs. Hanks thanking Civic Center staff Jason 

Agee and John Williams for going above and beyond the call of duty.  Councilman Davis asked 

Mrs. Thigpen to let them know about the letter and the council’s thanks for a job well done.  He 

also mentioned a press release from the Baldwin County Economic Development Alliance 

(BCEDA) saying that Total Quality Logistics, a non-asset brokerage company based in 

Cincinnati, Ohio has announced the opening of a new sales office in Daphne at 27900 N. Main  

14July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 14, 2014 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

 

Street.  The company looks to create in the range of 40-80 jobs over the next three years.  The 

sales people will be responsible for identifying shippers who need assistance moving freight, 

finding quality carriers to haul the freight, negotiating rates and satisfying shipper’s delivery 

needs. Councilman Davis gave kudos to the BCEDA President Lee Lawson,   and Lee Johnson, 

Project Manager. 

 

Councilman Scott wants to move forward with the bond refinancing, and wanted to know why it 

was not on the Finance Committee agenda.  He said it was supposed to be on the July 7
th

 

council meeting agenda, and when it wasn’t it was supposed to come through the Finance 

Committee, and it did not.   

 

Council President Fry requested Mr. Boucher to get with the Mayor and Mr. Ross on moving 

forward with the refinancing and see if it can get on the July 21
st
 council meeting agenda. 

 

Council is concerned about the lack of information coming from the Finance Department. 

 

Council discussed who sets the agendas for the committees. 

 

Council President Fry asked that Mr. Boucher research who sets the agendas for committees, 

and if it is in Council’s Rules of Procedure.  He asked that the Rules of Procedure be on the next 

Ordinance Committee meeting. 

 

Councilman Rudicell said he wants to see a narrative on the grant applications, and that there 

are budgeted personnel requests, and he cannot get a copy of the job descriptions for the 

positions. 
 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

g of the bonds.  

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes          Randy Fry 

City Clerk                                                            Council President                                       

        

15July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



16July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



17July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



18July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



19July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



20July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



21July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



22July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



23July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



24July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



25July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

26July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
   JULY 14, 2014 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at  4:07  p.m.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Joseph 
Davis, Councilman John Lake, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, and Accounting Technician Sue Moody. 
Councilman Ron Scott arrived at 4:14p.m. 
 
Also in attendance were Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman Robin LeJeune, Council President Randy Fry, 
Public Works Director Richard Johnson, Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, and Civic Center Director 
Margaret Thigpen, Recreation Director David McKelroy. 
 
 
I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

A. Jail Food (Trustee/Inmate Meals) Budget  - additional funds needed 
 
 Judge Hoyt discussed the recent request to use some of the Court’s 50% share of the Court Correction Funds 
to purchase inmate meals.  Judge Hoyt noted his discussions with Lt. Yelding covered the need for additional 
monies for meals and the additional cost of the meals due to changes in federal nutritional guidelines which was 
mainly due to caloric intake.  Judge noted that this change in nutritional guidelines required the Jail to start 
purchasing the larger frozen meal to meet the new federal guidelines which of course increased the cost of the 
meals.  Judge Hoyt discussed that he wanted to assist the Jail with perhaps loaning some of the Court’s 50% 
share of the monies by giving the Jail a larger percentage share until the Jail could repay the monies back to the 
court.  Mr. Lake asked what the monies in this fund are typically used for.  Judge discussed Court uses these 
funds for equipment purchases, security cameras, courtroom equipment, ect…  Mrs. Henson noted that the Jail 
will need additional monies in this line item as current budgeted monies has been exhausted.  Discussion 
continued on previous years expenditures for inmate meals and that there have been changes in expenditures 
due to fluctuating meal cost, changes in the number of inmates and guideline changes in nutritional caloric 
requirements. 
A summary of the current and previous year’s budget and expenditures is as follows: 

 FY14 Budgeted in GF: $45,750–actual purchYTD(thru 6-30-14)--$43,939+FY14 Ct Corr $20,141 = $64,080 

 FY13 Budgeted in General Fund - $35,750–actual purch -$36,368 +Court Correction-$38,630 = $74,998 

 FY12 Budgeted in General Fund: $42,750 -actual purchases- $43,920 +Court Correction - $0 = $43,920 

 FY11 Budgeted in General Fund: $58,000 - actual purchases-$44,740 +Court Correction - $0 = $44,740 

 FY10 Budgeted in General Fund: $58,000 - actual purchases-$54,687 +Court Correction - $0 = $54,687 
 
(As of June 20, 2014: Court Judicial Fund balance is $70,560  /   Court/Corrections Fund Balance: @ 
50/50 split of revenues is as follows: Court balance -  $189,171 & Correction/Jail balance - $9,641 (average 

monthly collections of $8,000 total @ 50/50 split between Court and Corrections/Jail) )    
 
Mrs. Henson discussed the current bid with Winn Dixie, which will expire on July 31, 2014,  has a smaller and a 
larger meal size option.  Mrs. Henson noted the larger meals were bid mainly for Public Works Inmates that 
perform physical labor in the heat, mowing, ect. but as Judge Hoyt noted earlier since the guidelines changed 
for caloric intake the Jail is now having to purchase the more expensive larger meals.  Mrs. Henson noted that 
Lt. Yelding had stopped by her office last week after meeting with the Mayor to discuss bidding out a new Jail 
Food bid for a different food supply system.  Lt. Yelding noted that new appliances (oven/microwaves)  would 
need to be purchased to prepare the new food supply packages.  Mrs. Henson noted that Lt. Yelding had visited 
a couple other jails in surrounding communities and found this new food system to be more cost effective.  
Councilman Rudicell, who is on the Public Safety Committee stated that the new Jail Food system and need to 
purchase new appliances was discussed at the last Public Safety meeting. Mrs. Henson noted that from her 
understanding the appliances needed would cost under $15,000 so these items would not need to be bid and if 
monies were approved to fund the purchase out of the Judicial Fund or the Court side of the Court/Corrections 
Fund then the appliances could go ahead and be purchased.  Mr. Scott asked if perhaps the Court fund could 
assist with purchasing the Jail appliances.  Judge Hoyt noted he had discussed with Lt. Yelding that the 

27July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



Finance Minutes  2  

preferred method was to loan the monies needed to cover the meal purchases but they were agreeable on 
making the appliance/equipment purchases out of the Court’s share of the Court/Corrections Fund. 

B. YMCA appropriation Request 
Discussion was made that there was a request for them to be on the agenda. 

 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 

Revenue Officer     Reviewing applications 

Deputy Finance Director    Reviewing applications 

Finance Director     Reviewing applications 

Events Assistant     Interviewing 

Recreation Program Coordinator   Interviewing 

Library Computer Services Technician              Pending 

Temporary PT HR Technician               DOH: 6/26/2014 

PT Public Service Worker    DOH: 06/26/2014 

PT Fitness Associate     DOH:  6/12/2014 

Mechanical Admin. Tech.    DOH:  6/05/2014 

 

Mrs. Hinman reviewed that before the Mayor left Thursday he asked her to start the preliminary interview 

process for the Revenue Officer position and those interviews will be for Wednesday and Thursday of this week.  

Mrs. Hinman noted that there were 31 applications submitted for the Revenue Officer position.  Mr. Scott ask 

what a preliminary interview was.  Mrs. Hinman explained this is where she screens the applicants to confirm 

they meet the education and certification requirements of the position and they are agreeable to the salary 

approved.  Discussion continued on the preliminary interview process.  Mrs. Hinman noted that there were 20 

applications for the Deputy Finance Director position and only 5 applications for the Finance Director.  Mrs. 

Conaway asked about two positions that were open for Finance.  Mrs. Hinman noted the Mayor requested to 

advertise for both positions to evaluate responses.    Mr. Davis asked what the education and salary range is for 

Finance Director.  Mrs. Hinman answered that the Finance Director position requires a Master’s Degree and/or 

CPA and experience.  Mrs. Hinman stated the position advertised for Steps 1-12 at a salary of $52,380 - 

$68,727.  Mr. Davis said with only 5 applicants he wondered if the salary was too low.  Mrs. Hinman noted a 

few years ago a survey was done and found that in researching surrounding cities the City of Daphne’s salaries 

were below average.  Mrs. Hinman noted that in particular the Director’s positions, Grades 29 and up, the 

salaries were found to be very low.  Mrs. Hinman noted that the City has not had to hire a new Director for a 

while so we have not had to face how low the pay scale is.  Mr. Scott estimated the City is $15,000-$20,000 

below the average. 

 

Mrs. Hinman noted Events Assistance will start work this Thursday and the Recreation Program Coordinator 

position had 5 applicants and they interviewed on Friday and will be making a decision.  Mrs. Hinman noted the 

mayor is working on changing the Library Computer Services Technician to just City Computer Services 

Technician.  Mrs. Hinman noted that on the Part time HR Technician they had hired the temporary employee  on 

June 26
th
 that was assisting in Revenue and had previously assisted in HR but that person returned back to being 

a temporary employee in the Revenue department so that position is open again.   

 

Mrs. Hinman continued covering the remaining items in the HR Report: 

Safety Committee meeting was held on June 25, 2014.  Report of City employee  injuries and property damages 

for last month. Cooling towels and hats for employees in Public Works and Recreation have been distributed.  

January through June employee safety awards ($10 Walmart Gift Cards) will be finalized and distributed in late 

July.  The next Safety Committee meeting on July 31, 2014 at 10:00 a.m.  The Safety Committee to begin 

updating Employee Safety Manual 

28July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



Finance Minutes  3  

 

 

 

HR projects/meetings: 

 Employee Benefits/Wellness Fair date is August 13 

 Budget Planning 

 PT Temp HR Technician started on 6/26/20 – Training 

 HR Assistant cross training on payroll and benefits 

 

 
Mr. Davis asked about the Budget Planning process.  Mr. Johnson reviewed the process the Public Works goes 

through in projecting operating budget with Finance Department assisting with the Personnel side.  Mr. Davis 

asked about projected cost and Mr. Johnson noted the department budget sheets show 4-5 years comparisons of 

actual expenditures to help project the new year’s budget.  Mr. Davis ask about budget comparison information 

for Council to review.  Mrs. Henson stated that the budget book given to Council also shows the previous four 

(4) years of actual expenditures along with the Proposed budget for the new budget year.  Discussion continued 

on Council receiving budget request presented by departments and Council being more active in helping 

departments evaluate budget needs.  Mr. Johnson noted budget process starts for departments at least six months 

prior to adoption.  Discussion continued on the budget process.  

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  June, 2014 

 
    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,329,776 
 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $ 500,941 
 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.7 months 

compared to the previous year -  4.7  months 
Included in the packet are graphs that show that activity is on track with the previous year. 
           .   
The Treasurer’s Report as of June 30, 2014 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,329,776  and 
Total City Funds - $15,984,336  was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes:  May, 2014 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,218,956.40 was collected for May 2014: 
 YTD Variance over Budget - $ 120,353   +  9.4% 
 Percent change from last year’s collections   + 5.5%  

 
Discussion was made on the increase in sales tax collection in June for May. 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  May, 2014 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for May 2014 were 
$107,155 which is up $38,707 from May’s 2013’s collections of $68,448.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $80,746;   +68.9% 
 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  +36.1% 

 
Discussion was made that the Lodging Tax rate increased effective April 1, 2014.  Mr. Davis discussed Bayfront 
improvements being funded through the Lodging Tax Funds.  Mr. Scott and Mr. Johnson noted that all property 
improvements on bay front property they are aware of have been funded through the Lodging Tax Fund. 
 

29July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



Finance Minutes  4  

 
 
 

5. Report: New Business Licenses – June, 2014    
      
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is 3,777 -  up 13 
from last year 
 
98 - Total Business License issued in June  -  up 25 from June 2013 (73 licenses issued).   
70 - Renewals – out of the 98  
26 - New businesses with 4 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 
  2 - Prior year licenses.  A map was included showing each of the 4 new businesses locations.  
 
Discussion continued on the four new businesses with a physical location in Daphne: Hub City Service Center, 
Uncle Maddio’s Pizza Joint, Southern Sparkle, and Off Lease Auto Outlet. 
 
 

6.  Bills Paid Reports –  June, 2014 

 
The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. Mr. Davis asked about the Clark’s temporary personnel in 
Finance and Revenue.  Mr. Davis asked if an additional person was needed in Revenue. Discussion continued 
that the temporary person had returned from HR to Revenue.  Discussion continued on the need for a third 
person in Revenue.  Mr. Scott noted the third employee would be addressed in the FY2015 Budget request. 
 

A. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

1.  Mast Arm Poles & Signal Upgrade @ Johnson Road & US98 - $75,000 
 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the project being done by State Department of Transportation where they are shifting the 
turn lanes on US98 & Johnson Road like they did on Whispering Pines and CR64 projects.  Mr. Johnson  noted 
that the State is funding that project 100%. Mr. Johnson stated the City is requesting State participation in 
upgrading the signal in this area to the Mast Arm Poles and a Signal Upgrade to allow use of  an Intelligent 
Traffic Signal system.  This upgrade will assist with future upgrades.  Mr. Johnson noted the City will ask the 
State to pay the full $75,000 match but expect at least a 50% cost share on the match of $37,500. 
 
Motion by Mr.  Scott  to appropriate  $75,000 from General Fund  for Mast Arm Poles & 
Signal Upgrade @ Johnson Road & US98 (ALDOT project -  50% share).  Seconded by 
Mr.  Davis.  Motion carried. 

 
2. Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop Emergency Drainage Repair - $108,925                            

(Survey, Design, & Letting Cost - $45,926 / Construction - $389,771.50)  
(Total Project cost-$435,697.50  / City’s share - $108,925 

 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the project and noted this was really three projects in one.  Mr. Johnson noted the City 
has already approved 75% reimbursement from NRCS for the channel work and 75% for the remainder of the 
work from FEMA.  Mr. Johnson noted the State is expected to reimburse half of the remaining balance (12½%).  
Mr. Johnson reviewed the bid is recommended to be awarded to the low qualified bidder Blade Constructions in 
the amount of $389,771.50 (total project cost is $435,697.50).  Mrs. Henson noted that the award letter for the 
bid will not be sent until the appropriation ordinance is approved. 
 
Motion by Mr. Davis  to appropriate  $108,925  from General Fund  for Edgar Circle / 
Melanie Loop Emergency Drainage Repair.  Seconded by Mr. Lake .  Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Mr. Davis  to recommend to Council to award the 2014-P-EDGAR 
CIRCLE/MELANIE LOOP EMERGENCY DRAINAGE REPAIR  bid to Blade Construction in the 

amount of $389,771.50.  Seconded by Mr.  Lake .  Motion carried. 
 

30July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



Finance Minutes  5  

 
 

B. Bids: (Resolution) 
1.  2014-B-POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT  

 
Mrs. Henson review the Police Vehicle Equipment bid and noted this is an annual bid to outfit new Police 
vehicles purchased.  Chief Carpenter submitted requesting award to the Firehouse Sales & Service, Inc..   
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend to Council to award the 2014-B-POLICE VEHICLE 

EQUIPMENT for unit cost as bid to Firehouse Sales & Service, Inc..  Seconded by Mr. Davis.  
Motion carried. 
 
 
V. OLD BUSINESS 
 
A.  Police Vehicle Replacement Appropriation Request - $41,008:  Flooded during the  

      April 2014 Rain Storm – Ordinance will be a 2
nd

 read at the 7-21-14 Council Meeting 

 
Mrs. Henson noted this was just listed as an FYI since this is an appropriation request and will be a 
second read at the 7-21-14 Council Meeting.  Mrs. Henson noted this was discussed at the Public 
Safety Committee right after the June Finance Committee meeting.  Discussion continued that this 
was the vehicle that was flooded during the April rain storm. 
 
B.     Farnborough International Air Show in England – July 14-20, 2014    

 
Mr. Scott discussed that last year the Mayor had attended the Air Show in Paris, France and 
additional monies were requested and appropriated.  Mr. Scott asked where did the monies come 
from for this year’s Air Show?  Mrs. Henson noted that the monies will come out of Executive training 
budget. ( FY14 Executive budget for training - $15,000). 
 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 5:19 p.m.  
 

31July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



32July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



33July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



34July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



35July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



36July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



37July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



38July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



39July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



40July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



41July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



42July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



43July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



44July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



45July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



46July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



47July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



48July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



49July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



50July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



51July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



52July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



53July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



54July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



55July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



56July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



57July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



58July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



59July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



60July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



61July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



62July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



63July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, July 7, 2014 

5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Randy Fry; Councilman Pat Rudicell; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk (Recording Secretary); 

Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official; Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor; David McKelroy, Parks 

and Recreation Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Mayor Dane Haygood 

Absent: Rick Whitehead 

The meeting brought to order at 5:30 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Public Participation 

 

Lamar and Willet White of 104 Gordon Loop, Daphne, addressed the committee to request aCity 

sponsorship for their hazard mitigation buyout application, as a part of FEMA’s national flood 

insurance program.  The sponsorship would require the city to provide a 25 percent match with 

FEMA to buy out the property and use it for green space.  Mr. Richard Merchant explained the 

process for qualification and awarding of the grant as well as gave a description of the area.   

 

Chairman Davis questioned the Whites regarding the history of the property.  Councilman Fry 

requested clarification for the costs associated with this grant for the City.  Chairman Davis 

expressed a desire to see the situation put into writing for the Committee’s consideration, based 

on the expertise of Mr. Merchant and conversation with the Whites.   

 

The Committee took no action, but generally decided to consider this on an on-going basis, and 

encouraged the Whites to proceed with the appraisal process. 

 

2. Approval of Minutes: June 2, 2014 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to adopt the June 2, 2014 minutes as written.  Seconded by Mr. Rudicell.  

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

3. Civic Center & Bayfront report (June): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her June report.  June 2014 revenue totaled 

$14,871.00, an increase from June 2013 levels.  Year to Date revenues stood at $156,199.50, 

above figures listed for FY2013.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for June 

64July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



stood at $10,800.50, and that the Civic Center has seen 12 events during June, for a total of 16 

days used, not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for June totaling $11,401.00, 

above June 2013 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $62,275.00, an increase from 2013 

numbers.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for June stood at $12,676.00, and 

that Bayfront Pavilion has seen 13 events during June, for a total of 14 days used, not including 

setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen listed a number of recently passed and upcoming events scheduled at the Civic 

Center which are listed on her report herein.   

 

In addition, she updated the Committee on the following: 

 Ms. Thigpen provided economic impact data from the recent Master Gardener’s State 

Conference, which is contained in her report herein. 

 She provided information regarding the City’s past contributions and other financial 

data for the Taste of the Eastern Shore event. 

 The Purchase Request for the Civic Center roof repairs was currently in the Mayor’s 

office awaiting approval. 

 

Councilman Pat Rudicell commented on the contribution to the Taste of the Eastern Shore 

possibly contradicting the recently passed Community Contributions Ordinance.  The 

Committee took no action, but generally agreed that the issue was best suited for a work session 

discussion. 

 

4. Building inspection monthly reports (June):  Richard Merchant 

 

Mr. Richard Merchant reviewed the building report for the month of June.  He reported 16 new 

residential construction projects initiated, and no new commercial development.  The 

department issued 136 permits during June, with a total job cost of $3,160,476.54 with permit 

fees totaling $23,323.05.   

 

5. Resolutions for Surplus Property 

 

Ms. Suzanne Henson presented two resolutions for surplus property, which are contained in 

the packet herein.  She passed out an updated copy of the Resolution to donate five (5) 

laptop computers, which is also contained with the packet herein. 

 

Chairman Davis asked that the organization receiving the donated equipment send a letter of 

receipt. 

 

Motion by Mr. Rudicell to recommend the Resolutions for Surplus Property for adoption by the 

City Council.  Seconded by Mr. Fry.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

65July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



6. Algae Systems Information Kiosk 

 

Sarah Toulson reported that the Downtown Redevelopment Authority would be interested in 

funding the purchase of the kiosk and would like to see some definitive options and associated 

costs for consideration. 

 

Richard Johnson mentioned the need to match the architectural style of Bayfront Pavilion and 

the nearby gazebo, to consider the ease of installation, and encouraged the consideration of a 

unit that provided a weatherproof case with key-only access to protect posted information. 

 

7. Proposed Partnership with BARC 

 

Chairman Davis reviewed the history of the conversation with BARC regarding a potential 

partnership.  He said after his research, he does not believe our animal shelter facilities are 

adequate for the type of project for which they are requesting assistance.  No action was taken by 

the Committee. 

8. Clarification of Gator Alley signage 

 

No action taken by Committee.  General discussion was had regarding Daphne’s “Gator Alley” 

signage.  The owner of “Alligator Alley,” a separate business outside of Daphne, asked the City to 

consider changing the name of Gator Alley for clarification purposes. 

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:28, motion by 

Mr. Rudicell and seconded by Mr. Fry. 

 

 

66July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



 Page 1 

Public Safety Committee 

Wednesday, July 9, 2014, 2014

  

 

   Councilman Pat Rudicell                                                                                                                  Police Chief David Carpenter 

   Councilman Randy Fry              Captain Scott Taylor 

   Councilman Robin LeJeune                                                                                                             

   Councilman Ron Scott                                                                                                                       Tracy Bishop - Secretary 

   Fire Chief James White                               

   Public Works, Melvin McCarley                        
 

Committee Members Attending:   
Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman Robin LeJeune, Councilman Randy Fry, Chief James White, and Chief 
David Carpenter, and Melvin McCarley.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 

 Councilman Rudicell convened the meeting at 4:30 p.m.   
        

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None. 
 
 

 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 
Minutes from June 2014 were adopted.  Motion was made by Councilman LeJeune and seconded by 
Councilman Fry.  Motion passed. 

 

 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

A. New Business –Chief went over the stats and D-Runs.  He advised that we are still 
waiting on the approval of appropriations to replace the vehicle that was flooded out in 
May.  Rudicell stated the second read will be at the council meeting on July 21

st
.  Chief 

asked Councilman LeJeune if Lt. Beedy got back with him on his inquiry on sex 
offenders at last meeting and he advised that he had not.  Chief asked Tracy to let Lt. 
Beedy know that this is still needed.  He did advise that he had gotten the email from 
Lt. Beedy on business burglaries.  Chief filled the committee in on our assistance to 
Spanish Fort Police Department with a domestic incident where a man barricaded 
himself inside an apartment at Arlington complex.  They do not have an SRT Team so 
they asked for our assistance.  Our SRT Team eventually got the subject out with 
minor injuries.  Councilman Scott asked if we get reimbursed costs when we lend 
mutual aid.  Chief responded “No” we have never asked for compensation.  Scott also 
asked about the Correction Fund and the Court Fund.  Christine Ciancetta explained 
about each fund and what they can and cannot be used for.  She explained that the jail 
sentences and the inmate population are more than this time last year.  She also 
mentioned that the jail was looking into purchasing two convection ovens and meal 
trays and a commercial dishwasher to start cooking their own inmate food which would 
save the city up to 58% from what we are paying now.  Councilman Fry asked if that 
cost too much.  She responded that it did not and that it would only require the two 
convection ovens and needed no hood vent system and passed health department 
standards.   
 
Chief Carpenter briefed the committee on Marie Scott, retired Correction Officer, in 
the hospital not expected to live. 

67July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



 

 Page 2 

 
Councilman Scott thanked Melvin for the “Cross Traffic Does Not Stop” signs at 
Sam’s, Country Club Drive, and Lake Forest Blvd.  Councilman Fry asked why so 
many tickets were written in May?  Chief stated that the officers were working 
overtime on a traffic grant.  Fry asked if we were still not unlocking cars.  Chief stated 
the department was not unlocking cars until the Attorney General’s opinion comes out .  
He stated the fines were hefty to risk it. 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

    A:  New Business – Chief White went over stats.  Chief did a Press Release where the agreement 
with the Alabama Fire College was signed.  Class schedules are filled all the way until next 
year.  Chief was questioned on the overtime issues and this was discussed among the 
committee members.  If three additional firefighters are hired, this should reduce the overtime.  
Chief stated he is very hopeful to get Station 3 started and the mold removed.  They plan on 
improving the façade.  Station 2’s new look on their façade is wonderful.   

  

Old Business  
  

OTHER BUSINESS:  Councilman Rudicell reviewed the recommendations on signage at the city 
parks submitted by Lt. Beedy.  He asked Melvin McCarley to work with Lt. Beedy on additional 
signage. 

  

ADJOURN             
 

There being no further business to discuss, Councilman Scott made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 
5:00 p.m. Councilman LeJeune seconded.  The next meeting will be Wednesday, August 13, 2014 at 
4:30 p.m. at City Hall Council Chambers. 

         
        Respectfully submitted,   
 
         
        Daphne Public Safety Committee 
 
 
 
 
 

68July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FIRE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 
Report Period   May 2014 

 Current: FY to Date: 

Suppression: 

1-Fire/Explosion: - - 

     10-Fire, Other  0 5 

     11-Structure Fire/Commercial 0 3 

     11-Structure Fire/Residential 5 14 

     12-Fire in Mobile Property used as fixed structure  1 2 

     13-Mobile Property (vehicle) Fire  2 9 

     14-Natural Vegetation Fire 1 14 

     15-Outside Rubbish Fire 2 3 

     16-Special Outside Fire  0 1 

     17-Cultivated Vegetable Crop Fire 0 0 

2-Overpressure Rupture: 0 0 

3-Rescue Call and Emergency Medical Service Incidents: 161 835 

4-Hazardous Conditions (No fire): 0 13 

5-Service Call: 16 91 

6-Good Intent Call: 19 52 

7-False Alarm & False Call: 20 83 

8-Severe Weather & Natural Disaster: 0 7 

9-Other Situation: 0 1 

Total Emergency Calls: 227 1234 

     Monthly Total Calls: 238 1230 

 

Highest: 15:00 15:00 

Lowest: <1:00 <1:00 

Average (Minutes/Seconds) : 5:14 5:14 

Miscellaneous Reports: 

Training Hours 290.50 1681.76 

Property Loss - $     $88,050.00 $206,600.00 

Fire Personnel Injuries by Fire/Civilian Injuries by Fire 0 0 

Advance Life Support Rescues 105 594 

Number of Patients Treated 159 816 

Child Passenger Safety Seat Inspections/Installations   4 45 

Pre-Plans 12 178 

 

Classes 7 24 

Persons Attending 79 287 

 

Plan Reviews 2 11 

Final/Certificate of Occupancy 0 3 

General/Annual Inspections 13 123 

General/Re-Inspections (Violation Follow-up - Annual) 0 14 

Business Licenses 1 33 

All Other/Misc. Activities 1 47 

Total Activities: 17 231 

 

Authorized by: 

 James White  

69July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FIRE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 
Chief James White 

 

70July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



Daphne Police Department Monthly Report May 2014

  

Patrol Division Detective Division: JAIL: Animal Control

Crimes Reported This 

Month:

   (Capt.Bell/Lt.Hempfleng)

    (Capt. Bell/Lt. Beedy ) (Capt. Taylor/Lt. Yelding) (Capt. Taylor/ Lt.Yelding)

YTD

# Complaints 1,224 # New Cases Received:  51
Total Arrestees Received &

Processed:                                 170 1,503 Arson                                                          0
Accidents, Private Property 13 # Previous Unsolved Cases: 92 Arrestees by Agency: #Complaints 76 Burglary – Commercial 1

Accidents, Roadway 68 # Cases Solved: 35     Daphne PD                         102 948 #Follow-ups 100 Burglary – Residence 5
Accidents, Traffic Homicide 0 Resulting in Total Arrests: 4     BCSO 13 93 #Citations 9 Burglary - Vehicle 8
Arrest, Controlled Substance 1      Felonies: 4     Spanish Fort PD 46 363 # Warnings 5 Criminal Mischief 4

Arrest, Drug Paraphernalia 3      Misdemeanors: 0     Silverhill PD 8 73 #Felines Captured 39 Disorderly Conduct 1
Arrest, Felony Marijuana 0 Houses Searched 0      Troopers 1 25 #Canines Captured 30 Domestic Disturbance 6
Arrest, Misdemeanor Marijuana 3      Other Agencies 0 1 #Other Captured 14 False Info to Police 1

Arrest, Alias Warrant 26  #Returned to Owner 4 Felony Assault 0
Arrest, DUI 11 Warrants:  #Adopted Out 17 Felony Theft 12
Arrest, Felony 2 Served 42 #Euthanized - Adoptable 0 Harassment 3

Arrest, Misdemeanor 56 Agency Assists 5 Highest 36 #Euthanized - Unadoptable 50 Identity Theft 0
Assists, Motorist / Citizen 252 Recalls (Pd Fines) 0 Lowest 20 Indecent Exposure 0
Citations 495 Total Warrants Served 47 Kidnapping 0
Drug Report 5 Meals Served 2,388 18,301 Menacing 0
Routine Patrol/Special OPS Sex Offender: Medical Cost $1,312.17 $16,993.98 Misdemeanor Assault 1

Searches, Vehicle 47 New Registration: 0 Worker Inmate Hours 176 1,383 Misdemeanor Theft 18
Security Checks 385 Contact Verification 2 Murder 0
Warnings 236 Total # registered in Daphne 5 Other Death Investigations 0
 DARE: Public Intoxication 1
 # Hours Report Writing: 2 Public Lewdness 0
 # Students Instructed SRO 750 Receiving Stolen Property 0
Drugs Seized: 4 # Students Instructed DARE 350  Reckless Endangerment 1
Money Seized: 0 # Police Reports by SRO 2  Resisting Arrest 1
Vehicles Seized: 0 # Arrest by SRO 1  Robbery 0
Vehicles Seized 0 Sex Crime Investigations 1
 CODE ENFORCEMENT: Suicide 0
CMV Inspections / CMV OOS 38 Warnings: 2 Suicide, attempted 0

Citations 0 Theft of Services 0
Warning Compliance

12
Unauthorized Use of Services

0
Follow – Up 14 Weapon Offenses 0

White Collar Crimes 8

71July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



Daphne Police Department Monthly Report May 2014

Approved by: David Carpenter, Chief of Police

72July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 9, 2014       CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE               Page 1 
 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, July 9, 2014 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                               

                                                                                    

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman                                                       Councilman Pat Rudicell                                                           

Councilman Robin LeJeune                                                                Councilman Randy Fry 

 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 

 There being a quorum present Councilman Scott called the meeting to order at 5:20 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ron Scott; Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune; Pat Rudicell.   

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk, recording secretary; Kevin Boucher, Attorney; 

Councilman Joe Davis. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES / June 9, 2014 

There were no corrections to the June 9, 2014 minutes, and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Steve Kingsmore – Loxley – supports industry regulation as long as it is fair to the 

consumer.  E-cigarettes are intended for adults only, and the ingredients have not been found to 

be carcinogenic, and is safer than traditional cigarettes.  He said it is premature to ban e-

cigarettes before the FDA renders a decision on their safety. 

 

Mr. Zach Carpenter – Loxley – Cyclops Vapor Manufacturer -  said banning is not the way to 

go with e-cigarettes.  He said you do not get carcinogens from them.  He supports education on 

what they do, and what they have done for three years.  This is not smoking.  He said that 

perception of vaping has people in fear of them. 

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW  

1. Amending Ordinances 2006-47 & 2007-10 / Sewer Connection Requirements  

a.)  Amendment:  Appeal Process 

Kevin reported that according to the section of the Code of Alabama the BZA was incorporated 

they can only hear zoning and variance appeals.  

 

The committee discussed the process asking if an already existing committee could hear the 

appeals.  They suggested the Environmental Advisory Committee. 

 

Kevin said that he would research to see if an already existing committee can hear the appeals. 

He will check with Richard Johnson. This could be a stop gap temporary fix before appealing to 

council. 

73July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



JULY 9, 2014       CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE               Page 2 
 

2. Proposed Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2008-19 / Protecting Air Quality in the  

               City of Daphne  
a.)  Amendment:  Banning E-Cigarettes in City Facilities 

 

Kevin reviewed the changes from the June meeting with the committee. 

 

The committee wanted the ordinance sent to the Police Chief, Judge, City Prosecutor and 

Department Heads for review, and be on the August 4
th

 agenda for a first read. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to send the proposed ordinance Repealing Ordinance 

2008-19 / Protecting Air Quality in the City of Daphne to the Police Chief, Judge, City 

Prosecutor and Department Heads for review, and send to council with a favorable 

recommendation for the August 4
th

 council meeting.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

                                                 MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

V.     OTHER BUSINESS 
The committee discussed tree protection and asked Kevin to review the ordinance and see what 

authority council has over tree protection. 

 

Kevin said that he does not think this section of the Land Use Ordinance applies to council, 

because the ordinance gives the power of waiver to the Public Works Director.  The implication 

does not apply to city property. 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be August 13, 2014 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

 

Rebecca A. Hayes,   

Recording Secretary 
  

74July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

75July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

June 25, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Members Present: Casey Zito, Debbie Strahley, Council Member Tommie Conaway 
Kennard Balme, Dayna Oldham, Doug Bailey 
 
Absent: Dorothy Morrison, Patricia Vanderpool  
 
Also Present: Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary); Adrienne Jones, Community 
Development Director; Annie Root, Daphne Art Center;  
 
Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:40 pm 
 
Public Participation: 
Killian and Mary Love addressed the DRA briefly, asking the DRA to consider funding 
the Daphne Football Team newspaper advertisement.  The Committee took no action, 
deciding that this expenditure fell outside the goals and objectives of the DRA, but 
members encouraged Killian and Mary to seek out the businesses and places of 
employment of the individual DRA members.  Various members acknowledged that they 
would take this request to their employers. 
 
1. Algae Systems Information Kiosk 
Sarah Toulson addressed the DRA on behalf of the Buildings and Property Committee to 
gauge their interest in providing funding to place an information kiosk at Bayfront Park.  
The DRA was generally interested, but specified that the kiosk should have more than 
one side and be more “natural looking” to keep with the surrounding architecture and 
feel of the park.  There was a preference among members for option six on the list 
contained herein.  Ms. Toulson will speak with the Buildings and Property Committee 
and work on providing definitive options and price quotes. 
 
2. Approval of Minutes:  
 

Motion:  to approve the minutes from the May 28, 2014 meeting as written.  Moved by 
Dayna Oldham, second by Debbie Strahley.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



 
3. Treasurer’s report 
 
Chairwoman Zito reported that the DRA currently had $110,489.27 on hand, after all 
approved expenses cleared. 
  

Motion: to approve the Treasurer’s Report as given.  Moved by Debbie Strahley, 
second by Dayna Oldham. 
  

Carried unanimously. 

 
4. Beautification Report 
No report. 
 
5. Daphne Farm and Art Show: Annie Root, Daphne Art Center 
Ms. Annie Root of the Daphne Art Center spoke regarding the Olde Towne Daphne Farm 
and Art show.  She provided an update as to the number and type of vendors that had 
been confirmed for the event. 
 
Kennard Balme gave an update on the various marketing efforts he and Ms. Root had 
undertaken to raise awareness for the event.   
 
6. Economic Development Training Course 
 

Motion: to allocate funds of $550 plus accommodations and other expenses to allow 
Ken Balme to attend the Economic Development Training Course on behalf of the DRA.  
Moved by Doug Bailey, second by Dayna Oldham. 
  

Carried unanimously. 

 
7. City of Daphne Comprehensive Plan: Adrienne Jones, Director of Community 

Development 
 

Ms. Jones addressed the DRA, thanking them for allowing her to speak with them 
and asking the DRA for input on the Daphne Comprehensive Plan.  The Committee 
addressed the following: 
 

 Areas for potential improvement in downtown: the strip mall on Daphne Avenue 

 Entrances to the downtown area:  Members mentioned that the entrances to 
downtown were not truly defined, and needed to be shown to say Olde Towne 
Daphne.  Many signage issues concerning the demarcation of downtown were 
discussed, especially the need for direction from US 98. 

 Committee members noted that way-finding and a lack of branding for the 
downtown area was a barrier to development. 

 Architectural harmony: members noted that similar architecture for buildings 
and businesses in the area would improve the overall aesthetics. 

 
Next meeting: June 25th at 5:30 pm. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:39  pm. 

77July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



78July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



79July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



80July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

81July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



82July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



83July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



RESOLUTION 2014 - 38 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING DISPOSITION FOR DONATION  
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Daphne has determined that there are some older computer 
equipment/Laptops that are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS,  such Computer equipment / laptops  are no longer used by the City; and 
 
WHEREAS,  several community organizations provide a certain quality of life services to the citizens 
and children of Daphne. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne supports the efforts of these community organizations in meeting the 
needs of families and children in Daphne; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has determined that these organizations could utilize these Five (5)  
laptops; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Five (5) Laptops are recommended for disposal; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  

 
1- The following property is hereby declared to be surplus computer equipment 

and 
 

2- The Mayor is authorized to donate the Five (5) Laptops to one or more community 
organizations that provide these quality of life services to the citizens and children of 
the City of Daphne. 

 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2014. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  
 

84July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



RESOLUTION 2014 - 39 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
 

 
 

 
DEPT 

 
EQ/VEH# 

 
DESCRIPTION 

 
VIN 

 
 
SW 

 
 
772 

 
 
2000 FORD F150 

 
 
1FTRX17W0YNB32502 

 
Recycling 

 
27 

 
1990 FORD F350 

 
1FDHF37G8LNA53036 

 
Mechanical 

 
2656 

 
Hofman Monty 1550 Tire Changer 

 

 
Mechanical 

 
2658 

 
Ford WDS Diagnostic Machine 

 
29486195105 

 
  

          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2014. 
           
      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

85July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-40 

2014-B-POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT 
 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the POLICE 
VEHICLE EQUIPMENT will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT 
and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT be 
awarded to Firehouse Sales & Service, Inc.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Firehouse Sales & Service, Inc. for unit cost as bid herein and made a part 
hereof for BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-B-POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS          day of              ,2014. 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
         
 

 

 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 
 

 

86July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



87July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



88July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-41 
 

  2014-P-EMERGENCY DRAINAGE REPAIR EDGAR CIRCLE / MELANIE LOOP 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that EDGAR CIRCLE / MELANIE LOOP 
EMERGENCY DRAINAGE REPAIR will exceed $50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the EDGAR CIRCLE / 
MELANIE LOOP EMERGENCY DRAINAGE REPAIR and has determined that the bid as 
presented is reasonable (Construction-$389,771.50 + CE&I-$45,926.00 = $435,697.50 Total project 

cost); and 
 
WHEREAS,  NRCS (Natural Resources Conservation Service) will  reimburse 75% of Stream 
Channel Restoration portion of the project cost - $186,240 ( NRCS-$139,680 / City Match-$46,560)  

and FEMA  grant monies are available for the remaining 75% of the project cost-$249,458  
($249,458: FEMA-$187,093 / City Match-$62,365 ) for the EDGAR CIRCLE / MELANIE LOOP 
EMERGENCY DRAINAGE REPAIR project; and  
 
WHEREAS,  historically the State of Alabama has participated in a local match; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City intends to make application with the State of Alabama upon receiving 
notification of State “local match” participation; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for EDGAR CIRCLE / MELANIE LOOP EMERGENCY 
DRAINAGE REPAIR be awarded to Blade Construction. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from                                                
Blade Construction in the amount of $389,771.50 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 
2014-P-EMERGENCY DRAINAGE REPAIR EDGAR CIRCLE / MELANIE LOOP.   

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this         day of                      , 2014. 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                                                                            
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

89July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



ORDINANCE 2014-28 
  

Police Vehicle Replacement Appropriation:  Flooded during the April 2014 
Rain Storm 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 
Budget on September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5” of rainfall for the period of April 29-
30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, one of the Police Patrol vehicles was 
flooded and sustained water damage; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s insurance carrier has deemed the 2009 Ford Crown Victoria 
vehicle to be “totaled” as a result of such water damage; and 
 
WHEREAS such vehicle is required in order to meet public safety requirements. 
 
WHEREAS, a Chevy Tahoe is requested to be purchased from the state bid 
contract to replace the totaled vehicle. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $41,008 for the replacement of the 
2009 Ford Crown Victoria and equipment.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this ________ day of ___________________, 2014. 
 
               

________________________________ 
                                                                      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

90July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



ORDINANCE 2014-30 
 

 Appropriating Funds for Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop Emergency Drainage Repair 
  
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on September 23, 

2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has determined 

that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 

budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, the Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop sustained severe damage; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop 

Emergency Drainage Repair Replacement and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable 

(Construction- $389,771.50 + CE&I-$45,926 = $ 435,697.50 Total project cost); and 

 

WHEREAS,  NRCS (Natural Resources Conservation Service) will  reimburse 75% of Stream Channel 

Restoration portion of the project cost - $186,240 ( NRCS-$139,680 / City Match-$46,560)  and FEMA  

grant monies are available for the remaining 75% of the project cost-$249,458  ( FEMA-$187,093 / City 

Match-$62,365 ) for the EDGAR CIRCLE / MELANIE LOOP EMERGENCY DRAINAGE REPAIR 

project; and  

 

WHEREAS,  historically the State of Alabama has participated in a local match and the City intends to make 

application with the State of Alabama upon receiving notification of State “local match” participation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts 

associated with this rain event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve 

the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. This project’s total cost is $435,698 and is a qualifying NRCS and FEMA PA project at a 

guaranteed total reimbursement of $326,773 (NRCS 75% of Channel Restoration portion - 

$139,680 + FEMA 75% of balance of project cost - $187,093). 

3.  Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of 

$108,925 from the General Fund for the Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop Emergency Drainage 

Repair cost not  reimbursed by NRCS and FEMA. 

4. If the State of Alabama approves a local match the City will apply for reimbursement of the 

remaining 25%  ($108,925) according to the State participation level. 

5. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with NRCS, FEMA and the State of 

Alabama for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated 

with the described projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ____ day 

of __________, 2014. 

 

              

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

91July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



ORDINANCE 2014-31 
 

Appropriating Funds for Daphne Sports Complex Parking Lot 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on 
September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, the south east parking lot of Daphne Sports 
Complex sustained severe damage; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the repair of the south east 
parking lot of Daphne Sports Complex  and has determined that the bid as presented is 
reasonable (Construction- $12,662.00 + CE&I + Material Testing -$2,000.00 = $14,662.00 Total 
project cost); and 
 
WHEREAS, FEMA grant monies are available for 75% of the project cost ($10,996.50) for the 
repair of the south east parking lot of Daphne Sports Complex project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Alabama EMA monies are available for 12.5% of the project cost 
($1,832.75) for the repair of the south east parking lot of Daphne Sports Complex project; and; 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts 
associated with this rain event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve 
the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. This project is a qualifying FEMA and State EMA PA, Cat G project at a guaranteed 87.5% 
reimbursement ($12,829.25). 

3. Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of 
$1,832.75 from the General Fund for the repair of the south east parking lot of Daphne Sports 
Complex cost not reimbursed by FEMA and the State EMA. 

4. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with FEMA and the State of Alabama EMA 
for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the 
described projects. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ____ 
day of __________, 2014. 
 
 
 
             
Attest:       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

92July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



   

 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
Dane Haygood 

Mayor 

 
  

Tommie Conaway 

 District 1 

 
Rebecca Hayes 
City Clerk 

 
 Pat Rudicell 
 District 2 

 
 

Finance Director/Treasurer 

 
 John L. Lake 

 District 3 

 
Richard D. Johnson, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 

 
 Randy Fry 
 District 4 

 
 

 
 Ronald Scott 

 District 5 

 
  

 
 Robin LeJeune 
 District 6 

 

Memorandum 
 

 
 Joe Davis, III 

 District 7 

 
 To: Councilman Randy Fry – President; Councilwoman Conaway, Finance 

 Thru: The Honorable Mayor Dane Haygood  

 From: Richard D. Johnson, P.E.; Public Works Director  

 CC: HMR Engineers; Finance; File 

 Date: July 16, 2014 

 Re: Project 2014-RE09 - Daphne Sports Complex Parking Lot 
 
  
Mr. Mayor: 
 
Based upon the quote tabulations provided by the Project Engineer, HMR Engineers, on July 
16, 2014, it is my recommendation to award the Contract to Asphalt Services, Inc. (ASI) for the 
repair of the south east parking lot of Daphne Sports Complex. The damage to the parking lot 
occurred during the April 29 & 20, 2014 flood event. They are the qualifying low quote. 
 
I further recommend the following appropriations be made: 
 

 Contract to repair SE Parking Lot (ASI)    $  12,662.00* 
 *Note: 75% reimbursable FEMA PA Category G: Parks 
  12.5% reimbursable State EMA 
  (FEMA/EMA: $11,079.25 City Match: $1,582.75) 

 Construction Engineering Inspection & Testing (HMR):  $    2,000.00** 
**Note: 75% reimbursable FEMA PA Category G: Parks 
 12.5% reimbursable State EMA 
 (FEMA/EMA: $1,750.00 City Match: $250.00) 
      
     Project Total:    $  14,6662.00  
     City Match:   $      1,832.75 

93July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



94July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



95July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



STATE-LOCAL DISASTER ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 

 

DISASTER:   FEMA 4176-DR-AL                                                       CFDA # 097.036 

 

APPLICANT NAME: _________________________________________________ 

 

APPLICATION NO.: PA ________________________________ 

 

TYPE DISASTER:  Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight-line Winds and Flooding 

 

INCIDENT PERIOD: April 28-May 5, 2014 

 

COST SHARES:  FEDERAL              STATE                   LOCAL            .                
* 

 

 

 
This agreement between the State of Alabama and the Applicant shall be effective on the date signed by the State and the 

Applicant.  It shall apply to all assistance funds provided by or through the State to the Applicant as a result of the above 

referenced disaster and incident period. 

 

The designated representative of the Applicant certifies that: 

 

1. The representative has legal authority to apply for assistance on behalf of the Applicant. 

 

2. The Applicant will provide all necessary financial and managerial resources to meet the terms and conditions of 

receiving federal and state disaster assistance. 

 

3. The Applicant will use disaster assistance funds solely for the purpose for which these funds are provided and as 

approved by the Governor’s Authorized Representative. 

 

4. The Applicant is aware of and will comply with cost-sharing requirements for federal and state disaster assistance as 

shown above. 

 

5. The Applicant will establish and maintain a proper accounting system to record revenues and expenditures of disaster 

assistance funds in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards and OMB circulars A-87, A-102, A-110, 

A-122, A-128, and A-133 as applicable. 

 

6. The Applicant will give state and federal agencies designated by the Governor’s Authorized Representative, access to 

and the right to examine all records and documents related to use of disaster assistance funds. 

 

7. The Applicant will return to the State, within fifteen days of such request by the Governor’s Authorized 

Representative, any advance funds which are not supported by audit or other federal or state review of documentation 

maintained by the Applicant. 

 

8. The Applicant will comply with all applicable codes and standards in completion of eligible repair or replacement of 

damaged public facilities. 

 

9. The Applicant will comply with all applicable provisions of federal and state law and regulation in regard to 

procurement of goods and services and to contract for repair or restoration of public facilities. 

 

10. The Applicant will begin and complete all items of work within the time limits established by the Governor’s 

Authorized Representative in agreement with all applicable Federal regulations. 

96July 21, 2014 Council Meeting



 

11. The Applicant will comply with all federal and state statues and regulations relating to nondiscrimination. 

 

12. The Applicant will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act limiting the political activities of public employees. 

 

13. The Applicant will comply with regulations implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 44 CFR Part 17, 

Subpart F. 

 

14. The Applicant will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 

1973 which may require purchase of flood insurance for some costs over $5,000. 

 

15. The Applicant will not enter into cost-plus-percentage-of-cost contracts for completion of disaster restoration of repair 

work. 

 

16. The Applicant will not enter into contracts for which payment is contingent upon receipt of state or federal disaster 

funds. 

 

17. The Applicant will not enter into any contract with any party which is debarred or suspended from participation in 

federal assistance programs. 

 

18. The Applicant will submit quarterly progress reports on all open large projects. No additional funds will be distributed 

if quarterly reports are not received in a timely manner. 

 

19. The Applicant will obtain insurance on damaged facilities as outlined in 44 CFR 206.253. 

 

20. The Applicant will provide copies of every audit report issued on the entity at the time of its receipt by the entity to: 

 

State of Alabama      State of Alabama 

Department of Examiners of   and   Emergency Management Agency 

Public Accounts      P.O. Drawer 2160 

P.O. Box 302251      Clanton, AL  35046-2160 

Montgomery, AL  36130-2251    Attn: Public Assistance Branch Chief 

Attn: Audit Report Repository     

 

 

 

Signed for the Applicant: 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

   Name and Title 

 

 

__________________________________________________                ____________________________ 

                                        Signature               Date  

 

 

Signed for the State: 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________________ __________________________ 

Governor’s Authorized Representative           Date 

97July 21, 2014 Council Meeting


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Backup to Work Session Minutes
	Beautification Awards
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes  July 14 2014
	Buildings & Property Mintues
	Public Safety
	Backup to Public Safety Minutes - fire monthly may 2014
	Backup to Public Safety Minutes - PD Report
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	Report of Special Boards
	DRA Minutes
	Utility Board Mintues
	Report of Officers
	Bond Refinancing E-Mail from Christine #1
	Bond Refunding Comparison #2 (7 2 2014)
	2014-38 - RES -  Donation PD Laptops (5)-2014
	2014-39 - RES - GOVDEALS COM
	2014-40 - RES - Police Vehicle Equiqment-unit cost
	Backup to 2014-40 - RES
	2014-41 - RES - FEMA-Edgar Circle-Melanie Loop Drainage Repairs-2014
	2014-28 - ORD - PD Vehicle Replacement-totaled
	2014-30 - ORD - FEMA-NRCS-Edgar Circle -Melanie Loop--April Rains 2014
	2014-31 - ORD - Sports Complex Parking Lot Repairs
	Backup to 2014-31 - ORD - #1
	Backup to 2014-31 - ORD #2

	SubheadingAL: (Governmental Entity)
	ClientName: Daphne, City of
	FIPS: 003-19648-00
	StateShare: 12.5%
	ApplicantShare: 12.5%
	ShareNoteAL: If the Federal Share changes from 75%, the Non-Federal Share shall be divided equally between the State and the applicant.
	Text1: 75%


